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 SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
STRATEGIC REPORT

= "FORTHE YEAR ENDED-31" DECEMBER 2021

The directors present the: Strategic Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Strategy and objectives

SSF Hijallland UK Limited has its business in Shelland and Skye, with aclivities on over 17 sites. SSF Hjaltland
UK Limited group is one of the largest salmon producers in Shetland, employing over 200 people.

The prime objective across the group is to produce high quality salmon. The group will also continue to focus on
the following key objectives: -

. Sustainable farming of high quality salmon :

improve biological performance; focus on all aspects of good animal husbandry

Being production and processing cost competitive

Maintain professional and competent management and effective arganisational structure

Profitable growth and having a competitive return on capital employed

Enhance investor and society awareness ’

Review of the business

SSF Hjaltland UK Limited is the holding company for the SSF Shetland group and il is the immediate parent to
SSF Shetland Limited. Therefore this review of the business section covers the results of SSF Shetland Limited.

The operating profit was £4.2m; this corresponds to £0.30/kg. The equivalent for 2020 was an operating loss of
£25.7m (£1.63/kg). Total harvested volume in 2021 was 14,165 tonnes, 1,540 tonnes below 2020.

The year was characterised by the continuing Covid-19 pandemic. Lockdowns in Europe, shifting demand from
hotels and restaurants to retail, impacled salmon prices significantly in the first half of the year. Markets
recovered in the 3rd and 4th quarters with prices returning to pre-pandemic levels late in the year. The results for
the year have also been impacted by high cost at the Skye farms which were affected by severe biological
challenges in Q3 2020. High production costs affecled profit levels in Q1 when the surviving Skye salmon were
harvested. The siles in Skye have now been fallowed and there are no plans in the short-term to restock these
sites. Biological performance in 2021 was greatly improved on the previous year. Improved survival rates to
harvest have reduced production cost.

SSF Shetland Limited has taken several measures in recent years to ensure strong biosecurity and improved
fish health and welfare, such as extended fallowing areas coordinated with neighbouring farmers, and control of
the sea lice situation by the use of aeration systems, sea lice skirts and freshwater treatment. Also as a result of
targeted measures, including a new vaccination strategy, smolt health, quality and survival rates have improved
significantly in Shetland. Good production was achieved indicating lower cost long term. :

- In Q4 the parent company Grieg Seafood ASA sold the Shetland operations 1o Scottish Sea Farms Limited, who
already have a significant salmon farming operating in Shetland. The sale will bring efficiencies of scale to SSF
Shettand Limited and will allow Scotlish Sea Farms: Limited to have better biological control, as operating areas
which were previously shared between the two companies, come under their control.

The UK left the European Union (Brexit) at year end 2020. The outcome of Brexit still represents an uncertainty
for the Scottish salmon farming industry due to logistical problems of gettmg fresh salmon from UK to the rest of
Europe

Ouring the year the company invested £2.3m in property, plant and equipment and at the year-end held tangible
fixed assets with a net book value of £36.8m. The company also held intangible fixed assets of £5.3m
representing the net book value of site licences. The book value of stock includes £40.8m of biological assets
being smolt and fish at sea carried at cost. At the year-end total assets amounted to £103.0m.

The company had net current liabilities of £73.4m and total net liabilities of £32.7m which refleds amounts due
to SSF Hjaltland UK Limited and subsequently Scottish Sea Farms Limited of £125.5m, all of which is included -
in current liabilities. The company continues to retain the support of its parent company Scotlish Sea Farms’
Limited to provide funding to meet its liabilities as they fall due.




SSF HJIALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED) '

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Section 172

The directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172 (1) (a) to () when performing lhelr duty to
promote the success of the company.

Salmon farming is an industry where sustainability is key and the likely consequences of any decision in the long
term have to be considered. SSF Shetland Limited aims to be open and honest with local communities about our
production methods, our successes and our remaining challenges. We view it as our responsibility to engage in
conslructive dialogue with all stakeholders and groups that are impacted by our activities.

A sustainable food chain is important both lo ensure our license o operate, and to become a preferred partner
among customers. The general focus areas to make the value chain more sustainable includes ensuring safe
and healthy food, quality control, traceability, sustainable feed, cutling carbon emissions and waste
management. By focusing on reducing our environmenta! lmpact and improving fish welfare, we aim to increase
. harvest rates and reduce production cost

The directors have due regard to the interests of the company's employees and the need to foster the
company's business relationships with suppliers, cuslomers and others as discussed further in the directors
report. The direclors are committed to act fairly between members of the company.

The company works to maintain a reputation for high standards of business conduct. Strong business integrity
and ethical conduct is essential in becoming a world leader and preferred provider of sustainably produced
salmon. Our farmed salmon has no traces of illegal drugs and no organic pollutants or heavy metals above the
allowed threshold. We have full traceability and strict quality control at every slage of production. Our
certifications GLOBALG.A.P. (Global Agriculture Practices) cover the entire supply chain.

Future developments

SSF Shetland Limited is now owned by Scottish Sea Farms Limited and over the coming year, SSF Shetland
Limited will work closely with its parent company to realise the economies of scale and synergies which will help
to drive down production costs and improve profit margins.:

Key Performance Indicators (SSF Shetland. leﬂed)

: 2021 ' -12020
Turnover £000 81,649 73,021
EBIT £000 4.230 (25.661)
EBITDA £000 9.820 (20,330)
EBITDA % 12.0 (27.8)
Capital Expenditure £000 2,333 7,405
No. of Employees 201 213
Harvest (gutted tonnage) 14,165 15,705
EBITikg £ 0.30 (1.63)

-2-
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SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

-~ ——FOR-THE-YEAR-ENDED-31-DECEMBER 2021-

Principal risks and uncertainties

The group is exposed to risks in a number of areas, such as biological production, changes in salmon prices, the
risk .of political trade barriers, as well as financial risks such as changes in interest and exchange rates and
liquidity.

The group’s internal control and risk exposure are subject to continuous observation and improvement, and the
work of reducing risk in different areas has a high priority.

The management has set paramelers for managing and eliminating most of the risks that could prevent the
group from achieving its goals. The company carries out risk assessment on all areas of the business then
mitigates risk through internal procedures or insures against risk.

The outbreak of the Covid-19 may reduce demand for salmon and disrupt global supply chains. After the
outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, authorities worldwide have implemented strict measures to reduce and slow
its'spread. These measures are likely to impact global economic activity, which might also affect global demand
for salmon. Furthermore, SSF Shetland Limited might experience disruptions to its supply chain upstream or
downstream. Air traffic restrictions with respect to jurisdictions heavily hit by the Covid-19 outbreak may impact
the aquaculture industry’s capacity to transport products to end-markets globally, which may have different -
impacts on salmon prices in different markets, and on operations, e.g. by causing a reduction in the price and/or
volume of salmon export due to e.g. severe delays on border areas because of passport and custom checks.
There are great uncertainties regarding the consequences of the Covid-19 outbreak, and should the global
demand for salmon and/or the Group's supply chain experience disruptions, it may adversely affect the revenue,
operations, financial condition and business.

Brexit . :

The UK left the European Union (Brexit) at year end 2020. The outcome of Brexit still represents an uncertainty
for the Scottish salmon farming industry due to logistical problems of getting fresh salmon from UK to the rest of
Europe. .

" The company has been working in close collaboration with authorilies, industry organisations, customers and
suppliers in Norway and the UK to ensure a smooth transition. Regarding our export of salmon from Scotland to
the EU, we are in continuous dialog with our transport agents.

Approximately 20% of our employees in Scotland are EU citizens. We have assisted them and their families to
apply for Settled Status, which gives them permission to continue to live and work in the UK. We follow the
situation closely and will do our part to conlnbule to strong relalionships between Norway, the UK and the EU in
the future. .

Financial nsk management objectives and policies

The Group operates within an industry characterised by great volatlllty which entails greater financial risk.
Financial and contractual hedging is a matter of constant consideration, in combination with operational
measures. The company draws up rolling liquidity forecasts extending over three years. These forecasts
incorporate conservative estimates of salmon prices, and this is used as a basis when calculating the liquidity
requirement. It is this forecast that forms the basis of the increased financial paramelers mentioned above. This
gives a good indication of the company’s liquidity risk.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to fluctuations in the spot pnces for salmon, which is mainly determined by the global
supply of saimon. The effect of price changes is reduced by geographical diversification, but due to the long
production cycle it can be difficult to respond rapidly to global trends in market prices. Salmon is mainly traded at
spot prices, and an increase in the global supply of salmon can result in a decline in spot prices. When entering
into a financial price contract, the buyer and the seller agree on a price and a fixed volume for future delivery.




SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Principal risks and uncertamties (continued)

Creditrisk

Credit risk is managed at Group level. Credit risk anises from transactions and deposits in banks and financia!
institutions as well as from transactions with customers, including accounts receivable and fixed contracts. The
- Group has procedures to ensure that products are only sold to customers with satisfactory creditworthiness. The
company normally sells to new customers only on presentation of a letter of credit or upon advance payment.
Credit insurance is used when deemed appropriate. For customers who have a reliable track record with the
Group, sales up lo a certain level agreed in advance are permitted without any security. :

quwdny and cash flow risk -
The management monitors the Group's liquidity reserve which comprises a loan facility and bank deposits, as °
well as cash equivalents based on expecled cash flows. This is carried out at Group level in collaboration with
the operating companies. The management and Board seek to maintain a high equity ralio in order to be well
equipped to meet financial and operational challenges. Considering the dynamlc nature of the industry, the
Group aims to maintain flexibility of funding.

Current and non-current liabilities are met with available liquidity, available drawdown on short-term credit faullly
as well as positive cash flows from operations.

On behalf of the board

<«

Director

Dafe: ﬂ-/cg/ZG’ZZ_ |




SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
DIRECTORS' REPORT

" FORTHE'YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Principal activities

The company is an investment holdmg company. The pnncnpat aclivilies of the subsidiary undertakmgs are
salmon farming.

Results and dividends
The resulls for the year are set out on page 11. The company has not traded during the year

No ordinary dividends were paid. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend {2020: ENil).

Employee engagement ‘

The directors have engaged with employees of SSF Shetland Limited in the year and had regard to their
interests, including in relation to.the principal decisions taken by the company during the financial year. The
passion and dedication of our people drives SSF Shetland Limited forward. Engaged employees are key to
achieve our targets. General focus areas are health and safety, creating attractive jobs, employee development,
ethics, integrity and anti-corruption. Accidents can be prevented by working on procedures and culture, or by
improving equipment quality. SSF Shetland Limited does not compromise on health and safety and has a zero-
tolerance philosophy for accidents. SSF Shetland Limiled has zero tolerance for bullying, unwanted sexual
attention and harassment.

Business relationships y

The directors have had regard to the need to faster the company's business relationships with suppliers,
customers and other stakeholders including in relation to the principal decisions taken by the company during the
financial year. The company use local suppliers of goods and services as often as possible and adhere to good
payment practices. For our customers there is full traceability and strict quality control at every stage of

production.

Directors

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of signature of the financial statements were as
follows:

G Cumming .

A Kvame , (Resigned 15 December 2021)

A H Sandiorv (Resigned 15 December 2021)

K Utheim (Resigned 15 December 2021)

J F Gallagher (Appointed 15 December 2021)

Qualifying third party indemnity provisions

The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors during the year.
These provisians remain in force at the reporting date. ’

Auditor
RSM UK Audit LLP has indicated its willingness to continue in office."

Energy and carbon reporting

As the company has not consumed more than 40,000 kWh of energy in this reporting period, it qualifies as a low
energy user under these regulations and is not required to report on ils emissions, energy consumption or
energy efficiency activities.




SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware there is no relevant audit
information of which the company's auditor is unaware. Additionally, each director has taken all the necessary
steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit
information and to establish that the company's auditor is aware of that information.

Going concern

SSF Hjaitland UK Limited is the holding company for the SSF Shetland group and it is the immediate parent to
SSF Shelland Limited. SSF Shetland Limited has made a small profit for the year. Going forward SSF Shetland
Limited forecast improved production, and gradual cost improvements driven by the synergies of the acquisition
by Scottish Sea Farms Limited as well as further operational improvements, driving down the cost per kg. The
company has net current liabilities and total net liabilities which primarily reflects amounts due to the parent
company which are included in current liabilites. The going concern basis is'therefore reliant on the ultimate
parent company. Scotlish Sea Farms Limited. to provide funding to support its finance requirements. Scottish
Sea Farms Limiled have confirmed that they will support the company for at least the next 12 months and
therefore the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate {o prepare the financial statements on a going
concem basis.

Information presented in the Strategic Report
The company has chosen, in accordance with s414C(11) of the Companies Act, to set out in the company'’s
Strategic Report the following information which would otherwise be required by Schedule 7 of the ‘Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounls and Reports) Regulations 2008' to be contained in the
Directors’ Report:

» Future developments

« Financial risk management objectives and policies

+ Details of exposure lo price fisk, credit risk, liquidity and cash flow risk

On behalf of the board

ummmg W&Z

- Director

| Date: 22/03/202'Z




SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

~FOR-THE-YEAR-ENDED-31-DECEMBER-2021— -

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report and the Directors' Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
direclors have elecled to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law). Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any malerlal
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriale lo presume that
the company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the company's transactions and disclose wilh reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They
are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SSF HJALTLAND UK
LIMITED

Opimon

We- have-audited-the-financial-statements-of-SSF-Hjaltland-UK-Limited~ (the"company) for-the year-ended 31
December 2021 which comprise the statement of income and retained earnings, the statement of financial
position and notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies. The financial reparting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable Jlaw and United Kingdom Accounling
Standards, including FRS 102 "The Financial Reporting Standard appllcable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In our opinion the financial statements:
+ give a true and fair view of the state of the company's affairs as at 31 December 2021 and of its result for the
year then ended;
« have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom General!y Accepted Accounting Practxce
and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requuremenls of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Slandards on Auditing (UK) {ISAs {UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's
Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

- Concluslons relating to going concern
In audiling the financial statements, we have concluded that the director's use of the going concem basis of
accounting in the preparalion of the financial statemenls is appropriate.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.

Other information

- The other information comprises the information inciuded in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the
annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
malenally inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we aré required to determine whether this gives rise to a matenal misstatement in the financial
stalements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. ’

. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based an the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
« the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the
financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
* the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SSF HJALTLAND UK
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

Matters on which we are reqdlred to report by exception

in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 .

requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
+ adequale accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been recewed
from branches not visited by us; or
+ the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responslbllities of directors-

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 7, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of fi nancual
statements thal are free.from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’'s ability to
continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

The extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud
Irregularities are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. The objectives of our audit are to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding compliance with laws and regulations that have a direct effect on
the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financia! statements, to perform audit procedures to
help identify instances of non-compliance with other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the
financial statements, and to respond appropriately to identified or suspected -non-compliance with laws and
regulations identified during the audit.

in relation to fraud, the objectives of our audit are to identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the
financial statements due to fraud, to obtain sufficient. appropriate audit evidence regarding the assessed risks of
material misstatement due 1o fraud through designing and implementing appropriate responses and o respond
appropriately to fraud or suspected fraud identified during the audit.

However, it is the primary responsibility of management, with the oversight of those charged with governance, 16
ensure that the entity’s operations are conducted in accordance with the provisions of laws and regulations and
for the prevention and detection of fraud.

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregularities, including fraud, the audit
- engagement team:

- obtained an understanding of the nalure of the industry and sector, including the legal and regulatory

framework that the company operates in and how the company is complying with the legal and regulatory
framework; )
« inquired of management, and those charged with governance, about their own identification and assessment
of the risks of irregularities, including any known actual, suspected or alleged instances of fraud;
« discussed matters about non-compliance with laws and regulations and how fraud might occur including
assessment of how and where the financial statements may be susceptible to fraud.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SSF HJALTLAND UK
LIMITED (CONTINUED)

As a result of these procedures we consider the most significant laws and regulations that have a direct impact
on the financial statements are FRS 102, the Companies Act 2006 and tax compliance regulations. We
performed audit procedures to detect non-compliances which may have a material impact on the financial
statements which included reviewing financial statement disclosures and evalualing advice received from interna!
tax advisors. .

The company is a non-trading holding company and therefore there are no laws and regulations that have an
indirect impact on the financial statements. :

The audit engagement team identified the risk of management override of controls as the areas where the
financial statements were most susceptible to material misstatement due to fraud. Audit procedures performed
included, but were not_limited to, testing manual journal entries and other adjustments and evaluating the
business rationale in relation to any significant, unusual transactions and transactions entered into outside the
normal course of business and assessing whether judgments and estimates applied are indicative of potential
bias.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the fi nancual statements is located on the Financial

Reporting Council's website at: mwmmmmmm This description forms part of our

auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Qur audil work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’'s members
those matlers we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law. we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’'s members as a body, for our audit work. for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

K Morvifon

Katie Morrison BAcc CA (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of RSM UK Audit LLP. Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants '

Third Floor

Centenary House

69 Wellington Street

Glasgow

G2 6HG

........................

22/06/22
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SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF INCOME AND RETAINED EARNINGS

—FOR-THE-YEAR-EN DEDv3-1—-DE-CE—MBER—2-O21

2021 ' 2020
£ £

Other interest receivable and similar o ‘
income 6 . 71,435,376 831,990
Interest payable and similar charges 7 (1,435,376) (831,990)
Profit before taxation - -
Tax on profit . -
Profit after taxation and prof’ it for the
financial year - :
Retained earnings at 1 January 2021 5;415,244 ' 5,415,244

Retained earnings at 31 December 2021 ) ’ 5,415,244 5415,244

-1f-



. Company Registration No. Sé159110
SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS'AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
Notes £ £ £ £

Fixed assets
Intangible assets 8 - 55,780
Investments 9 . . 10,499,466 10.499,466

_ 10.499.466 : 10.555.246
Current assets
Deblors 1" © 55,780 37,500,000
Cash at bank and in hand - 79 523

55,859 37.500,523 -

Creditors: amounts falling due within ' ) :
one year : 12 (81) (37.500,525) -
Net current assets/(liabilities) ‘ : - 55,778 (2)
Total assets less current liabilities. : 10,555,244 10,555,244
Cabital and reserves . : : _ v
Calied up share capital 14 5,140,000 5,140,000
Profit and loss reserves 1§ 5.415.244 ) 5.415,244
Total equity . . 10,555,244 . 10,555,244

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and a’uthor'ised for issue on 22June2022.
and are signed on its behalf by: :

-~

-12-



SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR-THE YEAR ENDED-31.DEC EMBER 2021

1

Accounting policies

Company information

SSF Hjaltland UK Limited is a private company limited by shares and is registered, domiciled and
incorporated in Scotiand. The regislered office is Laurel House, Laurelhill Business Park, Stirling, Scotland
FK7 9JQ.

The company's principal activities and nature of its operations are disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland” (“FRS 102") and the requirements of the

~ Companies Act 2006. -

The financial statements are prepared in sterling, which is the functional currency of the company.
Monetary amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest £.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal -
accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Reduced disclosures : :
In accordance with FRS 102, the Company has taken advantage of the exemptions from the following -
disclosure requirements;
- Section 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows' — Presentation of a Statement of Cash Flow and related
notes and disclosures _
= Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instrumenis’ — Carrying amounts, interest income/expense and net
gains/losses for each category of financial instrument
+ Section 33 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ — Compensation for key management personnel

‘The parent company of SSF Hjaltland UK Limited is Scottish Sea Farms Limited, incarporated in England,

who's immediate parent undertaking is Norskott Havbruk AS, incorporated in Norway. The consolidated
accounts (the smallest group for which consolidated financial statements are drawn up) of this company -
are available to the public and may be obtained from Bantelabo 2, 5020 Bergen, Norway.

They are also appended to the SSF Hjaitland UK Limited financial statements filed with Companies House.

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption in section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 from the
requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements. Consequently, these financial statements
present the financial position and financial performance of the Company as a single entity.

-13-



SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Going concern ’ » 4

SSF Hijallland UK Limited is the holding company for the SSF Shetland group and it is the immediate
parent to SSF Shetland Limited. SSF Shetland Limited has made a small profit for the year. Going forward
SSF Shetland Limited forecast improved production, and gradual cost improvements driven by the
synergies of the acquisition by Scottish Sea Farms Limited as well as further operational improvements,
driving down the cost per kg. The company has net current liabilities and tota! net liabifities which primarily
reflects amounts due to the parent company which are included in current liabilities. The going concern
basis is therefore reliant on the ultimate parent.company, Scottish Sea Farms Limited, to provide funding to
support its finance requirements. Scottish Sea Farms Limited have confirmed that they will support the
company for at least the next 12 months and therefore the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate
to prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis. .

Turnover
The company is a non-trading holding company therefore there is no turnaver this year of fast year.

Other income

“ Interest income . ’
Interest income is accrued on a lime-apportioned basis, by reference 1o the principal outstanding at the
effeclive interest rate.

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over
their useful lives on the following bases:

Licences : 50 years

Amortisation is revised prospectively for any significant change in useful life or residual value.

On disposal, {he difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the intangibie
assel is recognised.in profit or loss.

Fixed asset investments

Interests in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. The invesiments are assessed for impairment at each reporting date and
any impairment losses or reversals of impairment losses are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

A subsidiary Is an entity controiled by the company. Control is the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

An associate is an entity, being neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture, in which the company halds a long-
term interest and where the company has significant influence. The company considers that it has
significant influence where it has the power to participate in the financial and operating decisions of the
assactate.

Entities in which the company has a long term interest and shares control under a contractual arrangement
are classified as jointly controlled entities. .

Borrowing costs
All borrawing costs are expensed as incurred.
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SSF HJALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR-THE-YEAR-ENDED-31-DECEMBER-2021

1 Accounting policies {(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks other. short-term Ilqwd
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

Financial instruments

The company has elected to apply the provisiohs of Section 11 ‘Basic Financial Instruments”and Section
- 12 '‘Other Financial Instruments Issues’ of FRS 102 to ali of its financial instruments.

Financial instruments are recognised when the company becomes party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument,.

Financial assets and liabilities are’offset, with the net amounts presented in the financial slatements, when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle ona
net basis or to realise the asset and settle the Ilablllty simuitaneously.

Baslc financial assets
Basic financial assets, which include loans to fellow group companies and bank balances, are initially

measured at transaction price including transaction costs and are subsequently camied at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Other financial assets

Other financial assets, including trade investments, are initially measured at fair value, which is normally
the transaction price. Such assets are subsequently carried at fair value and the changes in fair value are
recognised in profit or loss, except that investments in equity instruments that are not publicly iraded and
whose fair values cannot be measured reliably are measured at cost less impairment.

Impairment of fi nanc:al assets

Financial assels, other than those held at fair value through profit and loss, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at each reporting end date.

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that

_occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows have been
affected. If an asset is impaired, the impairment loss is the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated cash flows discounted al the asset's original effective |nterest rate, There
were no |mpa|rments in the year.

Derecognmon of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights to the cash ﬂows from the asset expire
or are settled, or when the company transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to another entity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership. are retained but
control of the asset has transferred to another party thal is able to sell the asset in its entirety to an
unrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified accordmg to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a resndual interest in the
assets of the company after deducting all of its liabilities.

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financial liabilities, including loans from fellow group companies are initially recognised at transaction
price.

Debtinstruments are subsequently carried at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method.,
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SSF HJUALTLAND UK LIMITED

(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Other financial liabilities

Derivatives, including interest rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts, are not basic financial
instruments. Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative conlract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs or finance income as appropriate. unless hedge accounting is
applied and the hedge is a cash flow hedge. .

Debt instruments where the contractual retums, repayment of the principal, or other terms (such as
prepayment provisions or term extensions) do not meel the conditions to be measured at amortised cost,
are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Debt instruments may be designated as
being measured at fair value though profit or loss to eliminate or reduce an accounting mismatch or if the
instruments are measured and their performance evaluated on a fair value baS|s in accordance wuth a -
documented risk management or investment stralegy.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual rights to cash flows expire or are seltled or
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to another entity. or if some significant
risks and rewards of ownership are retained but control of the asset has transferred to another party that is
able to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party. A financial liability (or part thereof) is
derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Equity instruments :

Equity instruments issued by the company are recorded at the fair value of proceeds received. net of
transaction costs. Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as liabllities once they are no
longer at the discretion of the company.

Taxation
The company is a non-trading holdlng company and there are no tlmmg differences therefore there are no
current or deferred tax habilities.

Fareign exchange A
Transactions in currencies other than the funclional currency (foreign currency) are initially recorded at the
exchange rate prevailing on the dale of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabifities denominated in foreign currencies are translated al the rate of exchange
ruling at the reporting date. Nan-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction, or, if the asset or liability is measured at fair
value, the rate when that fair value was determined.

All translation differences are taken to profit or loss, except to the extent that they relate to gains or losses
on non-monelary items recognised in other comprehensive income, when the rélated translation gain or
loss is also recogmsed in other comprehensive.income.
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(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR-THE YEAR-ENDED-31-DECEMBER-2021

2

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the company's accounting ‘policies, the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptlions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods where the revision affects both current and future
periods. :

Investments in subsidiaries are held at cost less impairment. The dlrectors have carried out an impairment
review and concluded that no impairment is required. :

- Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the company during the year
was:

2021 2020
Number Number

Total

Directors’ remuneration

Directors remuneration is paid by SSF Shetland Limited and disclosed in their financial statements.
The directors provided no material qualifying services to the company during the current or prior year.

Auditor's remuneration

2021 2020
Fees payable to the company’s auditor and its associates: : £ £
For audit services :
Audit of the financial statements of the company : ' 43,700 42,015
Fbr other services . _
Taxation compliance services ’ : 14,085 13,160
All other non-audit services ) 11,575 11,130
25,660 24,290

Fees for audit and other services are paid by SSF Shetland Limited. The amounts disclosed here are for

.both SSF Hijaltland UK Limited and SSF Shetland Limited. '
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(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

6 Interest receivable and similar income

Interest income
Interest receivable from group companies

7  Interest payable and similar expenses
In!erestvpayable to group undertakings.

Further details of interest payable is given at note 13.
8 Intangible fixed assets
Cost
Al 1 January 2021
Disposals
" At 31 December 2021
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2021
. Disposals
A 31 December 2021

Carrying amount
Al 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

9  Fixed asset investments
Notes

Investments in subsidiaries ' - 10

2021

2020
£ £
1,435,376 5 831,990
S 2021 2020
£ £
1.435,376 831,990
Licences
£
63,387

 (63.387)
7.607

(7.607)
55,780
2021 2020
£ £

10,499,466 10,499,466
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

———FORTHE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 __

10

1"

Fixed asset investments (Continued)

Movements in fixed asset investments

" Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2021 & 31 December 2021

Carrying 'amount
Al 31 December 2021

Al 31 December 2020

Subsidiaries

Details of the company's subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

Name of undertaking Registered office Nature of business Class of
' } shares held
Iste of Skye Saiman Scotland Dorman-l Ordinary
Limited .
SSF Shetland Limited Scottand Salmon farming, Ordinary
processing and
hatchery

Shares in
group
undertakings

£

10,499,466

10,499,466

10,499,466

% Held
Direct Indirect

- 100.00

100.00 -

The registered office of all the subsidiaries is Laure! House Laurelhill Business Park, Stirling, Scotland

FK7 84Q.
Debtors
: ' 2021 2020°

Amounts falling due within one year: S £ £
Amounts owed by group undertakings 55,780 -

_ _ 2021 2020
Amounts falling due after more than one year: A £ £
Amounts owed by group undertakihgs - 37,500,000
Total debtors 65,780 37,500,000

In line with the requirements of FRS 102 the amounts due from group that are not expected to be realised
within 12 months after the reporting period are presented as due after more than one year. All amounts are

repayable on demand. Interest rates were 1.82% - 3.9% in the year.
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(FORMERLY GRIEG SEAFOOD HJALTLAND UK LIMITED)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

13

14

15

2021 2020

Notes : £ £

Other borrowings g 13 ‘ - 37,500,000
Amounts owed to group undertakings 81 525

81 37.500,525

Borrowings

’ 2021 2020
. £ : £

Loans from group undertakings o . - 37.500.000

Payable within one year ’ - 37.500,000

~ The loan of E£Nil (2020 - £37,500,000) was due to Grieg Séafood,ASA. the prior parent of SSF Hjaltland UK

Limited. Interest was being charged at 1.82 - 3.9% and was paid by SSF Shetland Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of SSF Hjaltland UK Limited.

Share capitél

. 2021 2020 2021 2020
Ordinary share capital . Number Number £ A
Issued and fully paid ' .
Ordinary of £1 each - 5,140,000 5.140,000 5,140,000 5.140,000

The Company's ordinary shares. which carry no right to fixed income, each carry the right to one vote at
general meetings of the Company.

Reserves

Profit and loss reserves
Cumulative profit and loss net of dlstnbutlons to owners.

o P T
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16

17

18

Financial commitments, guaranteas and contingent liabilities

The company has guaranteed the borrowings of other group members which at 31 December 2021
amounted to £162,497,042 (2020 - £359,059,787). DNB Bank ASA has a legal charge containing a
negative pledge and floating charge over all the property or undertaking of the company.

In February 2019 The European Commission DG (Director General) Competilion performed an inspection
at SSF Shetland Limited to explore potential anti-compelitive behaviour in theé salmon industry.
Unannounced inspections are a preliminary investigatory step into suspected anti-competitive practices.
The fact that the Commission carries out such inspeclions does not mean that the companies are guilty of
anti-competitive behaviour nor does it prejudge the outcome of the investigation itself.

There is no legal deadline lo complete inquiries into anti-competitive conduct. Their duration depends on a
number of factors, including the complexity of each case, the extent to which the companies concerned co-
operate with the Commission and the exercise of the rights of defence. SSF Shetlland Limited aims to be
open, transparent and forthcoming and will provide all necessary information requesled by the European
Commission DG Competition in its investigation.

Ultimate controliing party

The company is a subsidiary undertaking of Scoltish Sea Farms Limited, a company incorporated in
England, who's immediate parent undertaking is Norskott Havbruk AS, incorporated in Norway. The
consolidated accounts (the smallest group for which consolidated financial statements are drawn up) of this
company are available o the public and may be obtained from Bontelabo 2, 5020 Bergen, Norway.

The uitimate parent undertaking and controliing parties of the largest group for which consolidated financial
statements are drawn up are Leroy Seafood Group ASA and Salmar ASA, companies incorporated and
registered in Norway. Copies of the consolidated financial statements are available from PO Box 7600,
N-5020 Bergen, Norway and N-216 Kverva, Norway respectively.

Related party transactions

" All of the subsidiary undertakings |isled in note 8 are related parties. The parent company as listed in the

controlling party nole is also a related party.

Under FRS 102 SSF Hjaltland UK Limited is exempt from disclosing transactions with its wholly owned
subsidiaries.

The outstanding balances due to and from other group companies are shown in the debtors and creditors
notes.
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Strategic-report
The directors present their strategic report for the périod to 2 January 2022.

Review of the business

The principal activity of the group continued to be the farming and processing of Scottish Atlantic salmon.
The group has achieved a satisfactory result for the period to 2 January 2022.

Group turiover was £198,923,000, an increase of'£60.008.000 on financial year 2020.

Group operating profit was £20,559,000, a dccrease of £3,955,000 on financial year 2020.

The compuny recovered well from the effects of Covid that did continue into 2021. The export markets opened back
to near normal levels and demand for salmon globally stayed strong. As our results show we continued to trade
successfully, however, there was higher than normal biological issues that affected our cost base and margins. This
was, unusually, in all our farming regions, however, due to the continued hard work, diligence and focus of our staff
we were able o return an acceptable operating result.

Our smolt input was a record year in terms of numbcrs to marine sites, a total of 11.1m were put (o sea with our
investment in the Barcaldine RAS facility now reaping bencfﬂs with strong, hcalthy fish being transferred to our sites
at a good cost base.

In December 2021 Scottish Sea Farms Limited made the biggest investment in its history by purchasing 100% of the
share capital in Grieg Seafood Hjatland UK Limited from Grieg Seafood ASA, Greig Scafood Hjatland Limited owns
100% of the share capital of Grieg Seafood Shetland Limited and Isle of Skye Salimon Limiied (dorimant). This brings
increased marine capacity, further processing and freshwater facilities and the chance to deliver stronger biological
performances in the whole Shetland area. The company is extremely proud of this acquisition and welcome our new
colleagues to the business. .

Staff recruitment and development continue to be of paramount importance to the company. Over £500,000 was spent
on training our staff in 2021, and this expenditure will continue in 2022. The company has welcomed over 200 new
staff as part of the Grieg Seafood Hjatland Limited acquisition and we fully expect 1o share knowledge and experience
to further develop the company.

We continue to invest heavily to further improve fish health, lower waste and increase efficiencics. In 2021 we spent
£17m (o maintain the health and wellbeing of our salmon and to maximise our fish performance. This included the
acquisition of our second Thermolicer systcm at a cost of £2.6m.

Key financial performance indicators include the monitoring of the management of profitability and working capital.

2021 2020
Profit margin : 10% 16% Profit before tax/turnover
Current ratio 2.53 0.91 Current assets: Current liabilities

Group shareholders’ funds have increased by £65,601,000 to £151,908,000 (an increase of 76%). This large increase
is due, in part, to the acquisition of Grieg Seafood Hjatland Ltd.

The company continued to support the communities in which we farm and operate through our Heart of the
Community fund and in 2021 we contributed £160,000 to S5 different community projects, since 2011 we have paid
£1.5m 10 support local communities.
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Strategic report. (contmu d)

Section 172 Statement

Introduction

The Directors, in line with their duties under section 172 (*s172") of the Companies Act 2006, act in a way they
consider, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the Company for ihe benefit of its members
as a whole, and in doing so have regard to a range of matters when making decisions for the long-term. Key

~ decisions and matters that are of strategic importance to the Company are appropriately informed by s172 factors.

Board training and support on 5172 duties

-Directors are supported in the discharge of their duties by the office of the Company Secretary and a management
team. Through this governance structure cértain day to day decision making is conducted by the management team
of which the company secretary is part of. All directors receive guidance on their statutory duties including s172
and were briefed on the réporting requirements introduced by the Companies (Miscellaneous Reporting)
Regulations 2018.

Stakeholders

The Board’s responsibility to promote the long-term success of the company, relies on inputs {from, and positive
refationships with, a wide range of stakeholders.

Employees .

The Company directors are actively involved in promoting employee engagement. During the year we have engaged
with our employees on a regular basis through employee surveys conducted by Investors in People, roadshow of
meeling directors and the management team and regular updates through Teams meetings and our internal Yammer
pages. The Directors actively encourage communication and decision flows both vertically and horizontally in the
value chain in our business supporting our culiure of an SSF Family. We work to attract, develop and retain the best
in the industry cquipping our staff with the relevant skills to be successful.

Customers

The Company has continued to engage with key customers on an ongoing basis. The nature of our product and
service relies on continual dialogue with our customers to ensure product satisfaction, continuity of product and
customer checks in line with their standards. Customer visits are actively encouraged to showcase our high
standards of animal welfare and cmployec compcetence and this year we have introduccd remotc audits and site visits
using technology with good success. :

Suppliers

As a Company we depend on the capability and performance of our suppliers 1o help deliver the product we need for
our customers. It is key that these relationships enable our supply chain and our values of choosing local suppliers
to support our local communities. Again, this year we have adapted with our supply base using technology and
forward planning to ensure the continuity of the supplies we need to operate our business.

Shareholders

The Company has continued to engage with shareholders through general meetings and ongoing strategy and
development meetings. We rely on the support of our shareholders to enable our longer-term plan and in turn the
repayment of dividends.

Other stakeholders
The Company is committed to protecting the environment by focusing on good husbandry and housekeeping with the
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support of specialist teams to encourage innovative thinking. We work with local communities on putting something
back through our Heart of Community fund via donations to local charities and clubs. We support our employees by
being a Living Wage Employer and continually benchmark our remuneration packages. We work hard at using local
suppliers to deliver our needs and build local relationships ta support our employees with all aspect of their lives
including access to Health & Wellbeing services. We actively consult with local people to gain valuable perspectives
on the way in which our activities could impact. Through employee co-operation and efficient management
procedures, the company undertakes to encourage sound environmental practices throughout the business.

Principal Decisions

When making decisions, the Directors have regard to.the longer-term impact of such decisions and any possible
impact on all stakcholders. Examples of principal decisions made by the Company board during the fiscal year
include: in the management of fish health we have a prevention over cure approach to the health of the salmon we
care for and have committed to 3 new physical removal systems for dealing with sealice and intreduced earlier

_ interventions on a cage basis as opposed o whole farms.

In 2021 there was no dividend paid as the board wished to fully support the company in the acquisition of Grieg
Seafood Hjatland UK Limited, and this was evident as the company paid a part of the purchase price from its
_ working capital facilities.

"On behalf of the board

- k‘ﬁ\e/

J F Gallagher
Director

28" October 2022




Scottish Sea Farms Limited
Registered No: 958001

Directors’ report

The directors présent their report and the grbup financial statements for the period ended 2 January 2022,

Principal activity and review of the business
The principal activity of the group continued to be the farming and. processing of Scottish Atlantic salmon.

Results and dividends .
The profit for the period, after taxation, amounts 1o £13,166,000 (2020: £17,874,000).
No dividends were paid in the period (2020: £nil).

Directors
The directors at the date of signing these accounts, and through the full financial year are listed on page 2.

Financial management objectives and policies

The company’s principal financial instruments comprisc cash, short and long term deposits and/or borrowings, the
main purpose of which is to provide finance for its normal trading operations.

Interest is payable on borrowings at commercial rates of interest. The company's interest payable can lherefore be
affected by changes in interest rates. The company does not undertake active hedging of this risk. -

Other financial assets and liabilities such as trade debtors and trade creditors arise directly from trading operations.

Intangible assets acquired as part of a business combination are rccognised outside goodwill if the asset is separable
or arises from contractual or other legal rights. They are recognised at their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the company and Group
‘will continue in operational existence for the period to 31 December 2023 and meet its liabilities as they fall due.

The Group's business activities, a review of the business, together with the factors likely to affect its future
developments, its financial position, financial risk management objeclives, details of its financial instruments, and its
exposure to credit and interest risk are described in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.

The Group made an operating profit for the period ended 2 January 2022 of £20.6m and at the balance sheet date had
bank loans of £100m and £58.75m, and a RCF and overdraft totalling £8.5m. This is a result of the Group successfully
refinancing the loaas in June 2021 and then refinancing further in December 2021 (o support the acquisition of Grieg
Seafood Hjatland UK Limited and its subsidiaries.

The cashflow forecasts prepared for the new Group demonstrate that within the period from the date of approval of
the financial statements to 31 December 2023 the Group can meet the rcpayments of the new financing agreements
and remain compliant with financial covenants throughout. The financial forecasts are robust to sensitivity analysis
and stress testing on price and harvest volumes.
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Directors’report-(continued)
SECR Reporting

The Companies Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulation 2018 requires Scottish Sea Farms
Limited to disclose annual UK energy consumption and Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions from SECR regulated
sources. Energy and GHG emissions have been independently calculated by Envantage Ltd for the 12-month period
ending 31st December 2021.

Reported energy and GHG emissions data is compliant with SECR requirements and has been calculated in accordance
with the GHG Protocol and SECR guidelines. Energy and GHG emissions ate reported from buildings and teansport
where operational control is held - this includes electricity, gaseous fuels such as natural gas and business travel in
company-owned and grey fleet vehicles. The table below details the SECR-regulated energy and GHG emission
sources from the current and previous reporting periods.

EY20 Ya:chan ge.

~ Energy (kWh)

Gas oil 39,487,916 40,552,667 -2.6%

Kerosene 1,571,476 70,236 +2,137.4%
Diesel 2,604,881 . 2,182,597 +19.3%
Petrol - 951,420 895,357 +6.3%
Electricity 16,261,647 14,747,597 +10.3%
Total energy 60,877,340 58,448,454 +4.2%
Emissions (§COa8) ‘
Gasoil  10,797.8 10,410.7 +3.7%
Kerosene 387.8 17.3 +2,141.6%
Scope 1
Diesel 617.0 525.1 +17.5%
Petrol 218.6 205.2 . +6.5%
Scope 2 (L8M) Electricity 3,452.7 3,438.3 +0.4%
Scope 2 (MBM)* Electricity 2,748.6 2,628.8 +4.6%
Total SECR emissions 15,473.9 14,596.6 +6.0%
Emission intensity ratio
Intensity metric (FTE employee) 488 454 +7.5%

Emissions intensity (tCOze / FTE employee) 3L 32.15 -1.4%
*Included for comparison only '

Scottish Sea Farms Limited is committed to reducing its environmental impact and contribution to climate change
through continuous improvement procedures. As part of the Climate Change Agreement, the company actively
monitors and reports energy and production data against pre-determined efficiency targets in exchange for a discount
on Climate Change Levy.

The Barcaldine freshwater hatchery has recently been accredited with the Aquaculture Stewardship Council (ASC)
Salmon Standard, demonstrating a commitment to minimising Scottish Sea Farms' impact on local ecosystems
through a number of methods, from energy efficiency improvements through to the procurement of more sustainable
feed stocks.

Methodology // Stationary combustion (kerosene, gas oil) and mobile combustion (diesel, petrol) disclosures have
been calculated using billing spreadsheets and fuel card transaction reports provided by suppliers. FY20 kerosene
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consurmption has been re-stated as additional data has becomie available - total FY20 emissions have increased 16.8
tCO2e (0.12%) in comparison to the original submission.

Electricity disclosures have been calculated using metered kWh consumption taken from supplier fiscal invoices
where available. A negligible amount of encrgy has been estimated based on the average electricity consumption of
adjacent invoices, accounting for approximately 0.01% of energy consumed across the portfolio. All activity data have
been converted into equivalent energy and GHG emissions using standard conversion factors as published by BEIS
"in 2021. Scope 2 emissions associated with electricity have been reported using both focation-based (LBM) and
market-based (MBM) imethods. LBM emissions have been carried into the total ~ corresponding MBM emissions
have been included for comparison only. ' ’ .

Disabled employees

The group gives full consideration to applications from disabled persons where the requirements of the job can be
adequately fulfilled by a disabled person. .

Where existing employees become disabled, it is the group’s policy wherever practicable to provide continuing
employment under normal terms and conditions and to provide training and career development and promotion to
disabled employees where appropriate.

.Employee involvement

The company continue to provide information via regular meetings with managers, and the company also send out
regular newsleliers, briefings and have an internal social nctwork for business purposes. Employees are also
encouraged to present their suggestions and views on the group's performance.

During the period, thé company implemented an- Employce Assistance Programme. An EAP is an employee benefit
designed 1o assist any employee with personal, health or wellbeing issucs they have and is a free confidential service
provided by Scottish Sea Farms '

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of information to auditors

So far as each person who was a director at the daic of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit -
information, being information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its report, of which the auditor is
unaware. Having made enquiries of fellow directors and the groups auditor, each director has taken all the steps that

he is obliged to take as a director in order to make himself aware of any relevant audit information and (o establish
that the auditor is aware of that information.

Post Balance Sheet Events

In relation to the conflict in Ukraine, Scottish Sea Farms does not scll to the territories involved, namely Russia,
Ukraine or Belarus. Like most companics, however, there has been some cost inflation on consumables and energy.
This is not however cxpected to-have a material impact-on the group.

On behalf of the board

JF Gallagher
Director

28" October 2022
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— S tatement-ef-direeﬁtbrs—’-respensibilitlies~in-respee-t—ef*the
financial statements | |

The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Comipany law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period. The directors have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 and in accordance
with applicable accounting standards and law. Under company law the directors must not approve the financial
statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the group and the
company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policics and then apply them consistently;
‘make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
e  state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subiect to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; ‘
e prepare the financial statcments on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.
The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficicnt to show and explain the
group and the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets-of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISH SEA
FARMS LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Scottish Sea Farms Limited (_‘the parent company’) and its
subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 2" January 2022 which comprise group Profit and Loss
Account, the group and parent company Balance Sheet, the group Statement of comprehensive
income, the group and parent Statement of changes in equity and the related notes 1 to 29 including a
summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in
their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards including FRS 102 “The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice).

in our opinion, the financial siatemenis:

e give atrue and fair view of the group’s and of the parent company's affairs as at 2" January 2022
and of the group's profit for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

» have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethlcal
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

in auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern
basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and
parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period to 31 December 2023.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are
described in the relevant sections of this report. However, because not all future events or conditions
can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s abmty to continue as a going
concern.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and,.except to the extent
otherwise explicitly stated in this report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

10



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISH SEA
FARMS LIMITED (continued)

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives
rise to a material misstaternent in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have
performed; we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other-information, we are required
to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
in our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for ihe financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

s the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the
strategic report or directors’ report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act

2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:

o adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

o the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accountmg records and
returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 9, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the
parent company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for tiie audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from materiai misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

11



INDEPENDENT AUDITQR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF SCOTTISH SEA
FARMS LIMITED (continued)

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered capable of detecting irreqularities,
including fraud

Irregularities, inciuding fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design

~procedures-in-line'with-our-responsibilities; outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or
intentional misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our procedures are capable
of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below. However, the primary responsibility for the
prevention and detection of fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the entity and
management.

Qur approcach was as follows:

> We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the
company and determined that the most significant are FRS 102, Companies Act 2006 and the
relevant tax compliance regulations; ’

*  We understood how Scottish Sea Farms Limited is complying with those frameworks by making
enguiries of management including the directors. We corroborated our enguires through reading
the board minutes, and we noted that there was no contradictory evidence;

» We assessed the susceptibility of the group's financial statements to material misstatement,
including how fraud might occur by meeting with management within various parts of the .
business to understand where they considered there was susceptibility to fraud. We aliso
considered performance targets and their influence on efforts made by management to manage
earnings or influence the perceptions of stakeholders. Where this risk was considered higher, we
performed audit procedures to address the fraud risk. These procedures included testing manual
journals and testing revenue cut off, and were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the
financial statements were free from fraud or error;

-+ Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with
such laws and regulations. Our procedures involved reading board minutes to identify any non-
compliance with laws and regulations and enquiries of management.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
Financial Reporting Council's website at https://www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
. description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
company’'s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this
repont, or for the opinions we have formed.

/C, A - f’j k’(’\p

Nick Gomer (Senior statutory auditor)
for and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Glasgow 28/10/2022
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GrouP_income-statemem

for the period ended 2 January 2022

Turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution costs
Administrative expenses

Group operating profit

Net interest payable

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Profit for the financial period -

All the above telate o continuing operations.

2021
Notes £000

2 198,923

(164,805)

34,118

9,421
(4,138)
3 20,559

6 ' (1,584)

18,975
8a)  (5.809)
13,166

2020
£000

138915
(106,401)
32,514
(5,226)
(2.774)
24,514
(1,773)
22741

(4,867)




Scott;sh Sea Farms lelted
[amr e T e e Tt e rom o e o

Group_statement. of“comprehensuve mcome

for the period ended 2 January 2022

Profit for the financial period

Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension scheme, net of taxation
Restriction of defined benefit pension scheme surplus

Total other comprehensive loss

Yotal comprehensive income for the period

2021
£000

13,166

Company statement of comprehensive i income

" for the period ended 2 January 2022

Profit for the financial period

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on defined benefit pension scheme, net of taxation
Restriction of defined benefit pension scheme surplus

-Total other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive income for the period

2021
£000

12,520

(1,576)

1,576

2020
£000

17,874

(1475)
1,324
(51

i7.723

2020
£000

17,874

(1,475)
1,324

(151)

17,723
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Statement of changes in equity

for the period ended 2 January 2022

Pr_oﬁl- and

Share Share
capital premium loss account
£000 £000 £000
Group _ :
At 29 Dccember 2019 : 21,400 1,600 45,584
Profit for the period - - 17,874
Other comprehensive loss - (151)
Total comprehensive income for the period ?.l ,406 ) IgOb 61,307
At 3 January 2021 . 21,400 1,600 63,307
Profit for the period . - - 13,166
Reserves adjustment - deferred tax on acquisition - 2435
Total comprehensivc income for the period '21,400 1,600 78,908
Share issue during year 50,000
At 2 January 2022 70400 1600 78,908
No equity dividend was paid in the period (2020 - nil)
Share Share I"mﬁl and
capital premium loss account
£000 £000 £000
Company . ’
At 29 December 2019 ‘ 21,400 1,600 17,975
Profit for the period A - - 17,874
Other comprehensive loss : (151
Total comprehensive income for the period 51400 B 1,600 ' 35,698
At 3 January 2021 o 2-‘1,-400 4 l60E) 35:698
Profit for the period - - 12,520
* Total comprehensive income for the period ' Z_I,400 ‘ - 1.606 -478,.2r8
Share issue during year ' . 50,000
AL2 January 2022 | 71,400 1600 48218

. Total

£000

68,584
17,874
(151)

86,307
86,307

13,166
2,435

101,908
50,000

151,908

Total
£000

40,975
17,874

(151)
758,698
58,698
12,520
71218
50,000

121,218

No equity dividend was paid in the period (2020 - nit)
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Scottish Sea Farms Limited

Group statement of financial position

at-2-January 2022
2021 2020
Notes £000 £000
Fixed assets
Intangible assets ) 10 123,069 3,550
Tangible assets I 121,170 102,724
244239 106,274
Current assets
Stocks 14 124,488 95,995
Debiors 15 36,652 15,165
161,140 111,160
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year ' _ 16 (63,812) - (118,785)
Net current assets/ (liabilities) . : 97,328 (7,62.—5)
Total assets less current liabilities . ' . 341,567 98 649
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 17 (168,195) (6,.287)
Accruals and deferred incohe 19 ' (1,876) (1,084)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 8(d) (19.588) 4,971)
i Net assets L : 151,908 86:307
Capital and reserves
Called up equity share capital . 21 71,400 21,400
Share premium account . 22 1,600 1,600
Profit and loss account . 78,908 63,307
Equity shareholders’ funds 151,908 86,307

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by: -

-.\ ﬁﬂwwq he/

J F Gallagher
Director

28™ October 2022
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cottish Sea Farms Limited '

Company statement of financial position

ey

AR

At 2 January 2022

Fixed assets
Intangible assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets
Stocks
Debtors

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Net current assets/ (liabilities) '

Total assets less current liabilities

Creditors: amounts falling due afier more than onc year

Accruals and deferred income

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Net assets

" Capital and reserves
Called up equity share capital
Share premium account
Profit and toss account

~ Equity shareholders’ funds

The financial statements were approved by the board-of dircctors and signed on its behalf by:

4;» go«m, he/
J F Gallagher

Director
28* October 2022

Notes

10

14
15

21
22

2021
£000

1,305
26,665
179,063

277,033

P ——

83,922
27,743

111,665
(91,480)
20,185
297,218
(167,628)
o5
(7.420)
121,218

71,400

1,600
48,218

121218

2020
£000

2,296
181,778
6,500

110,574

95,995
15,165

(150,694)
(39,534)

71,040
(6.287)
(1,084)
@.971)
58,698

21,400 -
1,600
35,968




Scottish Sea Farms Limited

Notes to the financial statements

at 2 January 2022

Accounting policies

Statement of compliance ‘ .
Scottish Sea Farins Lid is a limited liability company incorporated in England. The registered office is c/o Shephcrd and
Wedderburn, Octagon Point, S Cheapside, London, EC2V 6AA. The Groups financial statements have been prepared in
compliafice with FRS102 and it applies to the financial staiements of the Group for the period ended 2 January 2022.

Basis of preparation ‘ .
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention. The financial statements are prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards. The financial statements are prepared in sterling which is the
functional currency of the group and rounded to thc nearest £000.

Going concern

The financial statements have becn prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the company and Group will
continue in operational existence for the period to 31 Decembér 2023 and meet its liabilities as they fall due.

The Group's business activities, a review of the busincss, together with the factors likely to affect its future developments,
its financial position, financial risk management objectives, details of its financial instruments, and its exposure to credit
and interest risk are described in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.

The Group made an operating profit for the period cnded 2 January 2022 of £20.6m and al the balance sheet date had bank
loans of £100m and £58.75m, and a RCF and overdrafi totalting £8.5m. This is a result of the Group successfully
refinancing the loans in June 2021 and then refinancing further in December 2021 to support the acquisition of Grieg
Seafood Hjatland UK Limited and its subsidiaries.

The cashflow forecasts prepared for the new Group demonstrate that within the period from the date of approval of the
financial statements 1o 31 December 2023 the Group can meet the repayments of the new financing agreements and remain
compliant with financial covenants throughout. The financial forecasts arc robust to sensitivity analysis and stress testing
on price and harvest volumes. .

Basis of consolidation

The group financial statements consolidatc the financial statements of Scottish Sea Farms Limited and all its subsidiaries
made up to 2 January 2022. No income statement is presented for the company as permitted by section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006. : . .

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on all tangible fixed assets, other than frechold land and houses. Depreciation is charged to the
asset while in use in line with the useful lives detailed below

Freehold buildings - 30 ycars

Leasehold property - 10 years or over the period of the lease if shorter
Machinery and equipment - 4 - 30 years

Motor vehicles - 3 -5 years

The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are réviewed for impairment in periods if events or changes in circumstances
indicate the carrying valuc may not be recoverable.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill is the difference between the amount paid on the acquisition of a business’s assets and trade and the fair value
of its separable net assets. It has been capitalised and is being written off over its expected economic life of 15 years
commencing in the year of acquisition. This goodwill is reviewed for impairment at the end of the first full financial year
following the acquisition and in other periods if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. The Group is required to obtain a license for each fish farm owned and operated. These licenses are,
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Notes to the financial statements

at 2 January 2022

Accounting policies (continued)

on average, renewed after 25 years for littlé cost, and so are regarded as having an indefinite useful life. The licenses are
valued based on the expectéd cashflows generated from the sites, and as part of this valuation management have made
estimates over harvest volumes and future prices. Howéver, under FRS102 it will be amortised over the average remaining

consent life of an average of 15 years.:

Stocks
Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In the case of ongrowing fish, costs mclude direct labour,
feed and direct overheads attributable to fish production.

Research and development
Expenditure on research and development is written off in the year in which it is incurred.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that the group obtains the right to consideration in exchange for its performance.
Revenue is measured at the fair-value of the consideration received, excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales
taxes or duty. The following criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have
passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods. The company manages credit risk by conducting credit checks on
its customers and arranges credit terms accordingly.

' Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences which are differences between taxable profits and total
comprehensive income that arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax assessments in periods different from
those in which they are recognised in the financial statements, except that unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax.
assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it is probable that they will be recovered against
the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Deferred tax is measurcd on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which nmmg
differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacled at the balance sheet date.

Government grants

Goverament grants in respect of capital expenditure are credited 10 a deferred income account and are released to profit
over the expected useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual instalments.

Grants of a revenue nature are credited to income in the period to which they relate.

Leasing end hire purchase commitments

Assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are capitalised in the balance sheet and are depreciated over
their useful lives.

The interest element of the rental obligations is charged to the profit and loss account over the period of the lease and
represents a constant proportion of the balance of capital repayments outstanding.

‘Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the financial statements
at 2 January 2022

1. Accounting policies (continuéd)

Pension§
The group operates both a defined benefit and a defined contribution pension scheme. The assets of the schemes are
held separately from those of the group. Defined benefit pension scheme assets are measured using market value.

Associated pension scheme liabilities are measured using a projected unit method and discounted at the current rate of
return on a high quality corporate bond of equivalent terms and currency to the liability. :

" Any increase in the present value of the liabilities of the group’s defined benefit pension scheme expected to arise from
employee service in the period, is charged to the operating profit. The nét intercst element is determined by multiplying
the net defined benefit liability by the discount rate, at the start of the period taking into account any changes in the net
defined benefit liability during the period as a result of contribution and benefit payments.

The net interest is recognised in the income statement as other finance revenue or cosl. Actuarial gains and losses are
. recognised in the statement of iotal comprehensive income.

A surplus will only be recognised if there is agreement from the Trustees of the Defined Benefit Scheme at the Balance
Sheet date and that the company will obtain the benefit from cither a refund or reduction in future contributions.

The company also operates a defined contribution peasion scheme. Contributions are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monctary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. AII
foreign currency exchange differcnces arc dealt with through the income statement.

Cash flow statement

The company has taken advaniage of the exemption conterred by FRS 102 with the requirements of section 7 Statement
of_ Cash Flows and Section 3 Financial Statement Presentation paragraph ‘% 17(d).

Derivative instruments

The group uses forward foreign currency contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange rates. Derivative financial
instruments are initially measured at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss. Derivatives arc carried as asscts when the fair value is
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative. The fair value of the forward currency contracts is calculated
by reference to current forward cxchange contracts with similar maturity profiles. Th«, company does not undertake any
hedge accounting transactions.

Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
Stock

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. In the case of on-growing fish, costs include dlrecl labour,
feed and direct overheads attributable to fish production. Judgement is required by management to ascertain the appropriate
categories and proportion of overheads and other expenses that are directly attributable to the fish production. '

There is a further clement of estimation in regards to the stocks being held at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
There are a series of assumptions made when estimating the net realisable value including the size, number, and biomass
of the fish. The accumulated cost of the fish per kilogram can deviate based on the harvest volume. Management utilises
several techniques including weighing samples and camera technology to ensure the volume is accurate.
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Notes to the financial statements

at.2 January.2022

Aceounting policies (continued)
Licenses

The Group is required to obtain a license for each fish farm owned and operated. These licences, on average, are renewed
after 25 years for little cost, and so are regarded as having an indefinite useful life. The licenses are valued. based on the
expected cashflows generated from the sites, and as part of this valuation management have made estimates over harvest
volumes and future prices. However, under FRS]O? it will be amortised over the average remaining consent life of an
average of |5 years.

Turnover

Turnover comprises the invoice value of goods and services supplied by the group exclusive of VAT and intra-group
transactions.

Turnover is attributable to oae continuing activity: the farming and processing of salmon.

No further analysis of turnover has been disclosed, as, in the opinion of the directors, any further analysns would be
seriously prejudicial 10 the interests of the group.

Group operating profit

_This is stated after charging/(crediting):

2021 2020
£000 £000
Depreciation of owned assets 11,482 8,929
Depreciation of assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 879 1,534
12,361 10,463
Auditor remuneration :
- audit services 70 49
- non audit services: )
Taxation - compliance : 36 26
Pension 10 7
Taxation - advisory 35 65
Advisory — other . : 124 -
Hire of plant and equipment 21,608 13,840
Amortisation of goodwill and intangible assets 992 968
Release of deferred government grants (205) (77
Exchange loss 398 230
Gain on sale of fixed assets ' (144) (36)
Directors’ remuneration
2027 2020
£000 £000 -
Emoluments ) 566 564 .

The emoluments of the highest paid director for the period ended 2 January 2022 were £566,000 (2020 - £564,000) and
pension contributions were £nil (2020 - nil). No directors were members of the Defined Benefit Pension Scheme.
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Notes to the financia! statements
at 2 January 2022

5. Staff costs

Wages and salaries
Social security cosls
Other pension costs

21822 19,657

2021 2020
£000 £000
19,318 17,316
1,986 © 1,872
518 469

The average number of persons employed by the group, including directors, was made up as foliows:

Production
Administration

6. Net interest payable

Bank loan intcrest
Bank overdraft interest
Finance charges payable under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Less: interest received

7. Other finance income

_Interest on pension scheme liabilities
Expeciled return on pension scheme asscts

2021 2020
No. No.
441 a1l
47 4
488 454
2021 2020

£000 £000

1,059 1,256
358 370
169 180

1,586 " 1,806

(2) (33)

1,584 1,773
2021 2020

£000 £000

(291) (370)
291 370
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Notes to the financial statements
at 2 January 2022

8. Taxation

(a) - Tax on profit on ordinary activities

Group

“The tax charge is made up as follows: ‘ 2021 2020
: A ‘ Note . £000 £000

UK corporation fax: . ' :

UK corporation tax on profit for period 12,250 3,990

Tax (over)/ under provided in previous years ' 959 331

3200 432

Deferred tax: .

Originating and reversal of timing differenccs 749 46

Adjustment in respect of previous periods ( 70 (18)

Effect of changes in tax rates . 1,781 518

Total tax charge &b) 5,809 4,867

Other comprehensive income items

Current tax : ; - (36)

(b)  Factors affecting the total tax charge

Group —

Tax on profits is at the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2020 — 19%). The tax charge for the ycar can
be reconciled to the profit per the income statement as follows: o
‘ 2021 2020

Note — £000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before tax ' 18,975 22,741
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate of . .
corporation tax in the UK of 19% (2020 - 19%) 3.605 4,317
Effect of: ) » A
Disallowed expenses and non-taxable income 733 ©295
Income not taxable (1,339) (576)
Gains/ rollover relief etc o - -
Adjustment from previous periods 1,029 313
Tax rate changes ) 1,781 518

8(a) 5,809 4,867




 Scottish Sea Farms Limited '

Notes to the financial statements
at 2 January 2022 '

8. Taxation (continied)

(c)  Factors that may affect future tax charges

The UK corporation tax rate remained at 19% for the years starting | April 2021 in the 2021 budget. The UK
government confirmed on 14" October 2022 that the planned Corporation Tax increase (o 25% from April 2023 will go
ahead. '

(d) Deferred tax

The deferred tax liability included in the group and company statement of financial position is as follows:

Group ‘ Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

" £000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed asset timing differences 10,664 5,030 7.640 5,030
Other timing differences 334 (59) (220) (59)
- Losses, ~(11,537) - - -
Fair value adjustments on acquisition 20,127 - - -
19,588 4971 7,420 4,971

Group Company

£000 £000

At 3 January 2021 4,971 4,974
Adjustment in respect of prior ycars 70 70
Deferred tax charge (o income statement for the period 2,530 2,379
Movement arising from the acquisition or disposal of business  « (1,741) -
Fair value adjustments to goodwill 13,758 -

At 2 January 2022 ) . 19,588 7,420

Fair value adjustments to goodwill resulted from the alignment of the acquircd fixed assets and stocks to the valuation
and amortisation to Scottish Sea Farms policies.

All the deferred tax balances above are stated at 25% (2020 - 17%).

9. Profit attributable to members of the parent company

The company has not presented its own profit and loss account for the period ended 2 January 2022. Of the gfoup profit
for the financial period, a profit attributable to the members of £12,520,000 (2020 - £17,874,000) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the company. .
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10

Intangible fixed asseis

-Group
Goodwill Sites Total
£000 £000 _ £000
Cost: . .
At 3 January 2021 9,656 2,525 12,181
Additions in périod _ ' 18,111 102,400 . 120,511
_ 27,767 104,925 : 132,692
- Amortisation
At 3 January 2021 7,378 £,253 8,631
Provided in period - 879 113 992
A2 January 2022 8,257 1,366 9,623
Net book value:
At 2 January 2022 ' 19,510 103,559 123,069
At 3 January 2021 ' 2278 1,272 3,550
Company .
Goodwill - - Sites Total
£000 - £000 ’ £000
Cost:
At 3 Jan 21 and 2 January 2022 8,064 - . 2,320 10,384
Amortisation »
At 3 January 2021 ' 6,946 1,142 8,088
Provided in period 878 113 99|
At 2 January 2022 7.824 1255 ° 9,079
Net book value: ' _— —_— S
At 2 January 2022 ‘ 240 1,065 1,305
. Av3January 202t LIS, LI78 2,296

|
|

Intangible assets are being amortised in equal annual instalments over their estimated economic life of 15 years. Site
leases are issued over 25 years and are written down over this period.
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Notes to the financial statements
at 2. January 2022 '

11. Tangible fixed assets

Group
Freehold Buildings  Machinery Assets
land and  and leasehold and Motor under
buildings land equipment  vehicles construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 ~ £000
Cost: ‘
At 3 January 2021, " 42,306 1,099 170,147 3,907 2,235 219,694
Additions 103 - 3,286 262 3,454 7,105
Reclassifications - - 1,095 - (1,095) -
Acquisition of subsidiary 7,638 - 16,272 - - 23,910
Disposals (208) - - (181 - (389)
© A2 Janisary 2022 49,839 1,099 190,800 3,988 4594 250,320
Depreciation : ,
At 3 January 2021 5,626 1,099 106,921 3,324 - 116,970
Chargc for period 1,20} - 10,761 399 - 12,361
Disposals - - - (181) - (181)
At 2 January 2022 6,827 1,099 117,682 3,542 - 129,1 50
Net book value: )
At 2 January 2022 43,012 - o- 73,118 446 4,594 121,170
At 3 January 2021 36.680‘ . 63,226 583 2,235 102,724

The net book value of machinery and equipment and motor vehicles includes £4,472,000 (2020 - £5,088,000) and
£318,000 (2020 - £396,000) respectively relating to asscts held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The
cost of land included in the net book value of tangible fixed assets above is £5,501,000 (2020 - £5,428,000).
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Notes to the financial statements
at 2 January 2022

11. Tangibie asseis (continued)

Company :
: Freehold Buildings  Machinery Assets
land and and leasehold and Motor under
ouildings iand equipment  vehicles coristruction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost: ) ’
At 3 January 2021 41,008 1,099 157,726 3,621 2,235 205,689
Additions 103 - 3,287 261 3,454 7,105
Reclassifications ' - : - 1,095 - (1,095) -
Disposals (208) - - (181) - (389)
At2 January 2022 40,903 1,095 162,108 3701 4,594 212,405
Depreciation :
At 3 January 2021 5413 1,099 - 94,362 3,037 - 103,911
Charge for period . 1,200 - 10,410 . 400 - 12,010
Disposals - - - - (181) - (181)
At2 January 2022 6,613 1,099 104772 3256 . - 115740
Net book value:
At 2 January 2022 34,290 - 57,337 446 4,592 96,66
Al 3 January 2021 35,59 - 63,364 584 2,235 101,778

The net book value of machinery and equipment and motor vehicles includes £3,836,000 (2020 - £5,088,000) and
- £318,000 (2020 - £396,000) respectively relating to assets held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts. The
cost of land in¢luded in the net book value of tangible fixed assets above is £5,428,000 (2020 - £5,428,000).
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* Held by a subsidiary undertaking

The registered office for all the above companices is:

Laurel House

Laurelhill Business Park
Stirling

FK79JQ

at 2 January 2022
Investments :
Company Subsidiary Subsidiary
Undertakings Undertakings
2021 2020
£000 £000
Cost:
Opening balance 6,500 6,500
Additions in year 172,563 -
Closing balance 179,063 6.500
Class of Country of Proportion
share Incorporation held
. SSF Hjatland UK Limited Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
SSF Shetland Limited* - Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
The above éompanies principal activities are the furmirig and sale of salmon
The companies listed below arc dormant.
Orkney Sea Farms Lud* Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
GSP Farms Limited Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
Scottish Sea Farms Sales Limited Ordinary £1 Scottand 100%
Kerrera Fisheries Limited Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
MIM (Salmon) Lid Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
Dury Satmon Ltd Ordinary £1 Scouland 100%
Terregles Salmon Company Lid* Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
Ettrick Trout Co Ltd Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
Isle of Skye Salmon Limited* Ordinary £1 Scotland 100%
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Notes to the financial statements
at.2 January. 2022 '

13.

Acquisition

On 151h December 2021 Scottish Sea Farms Limited acquired 100% of the share capital of Grieg Seafood Hjatland UK
Limited (company number SC159110), and its subsidiaries Grieg Seafood Shetland Limited (company number
SC093192) and Isie of Skye Saimon Limited (company number SC647034). In October 2021 UK Competition and
Markets Authority (CMA) started investigating the proposed purchase and on 8th December the deal was cleared,
allowing the full acquisition to be completed a week Jater. The full purchase consideration on 15* December was
£172.6m, and this included 2! active farms, a processing plant and a freshwater facility.

The assets and liabilities recognised as a result of the acquisition were as follows:

Fixed Assets . . 23910
Stocks » ' 39,859
Debtors 12,801
Creditors - (12,504)
Cash 2
Site licences . 102,400 .
Tax assets : . 12,401
Tax liabilities (24417)
Fair Value of Assets Acquired 154,452
Consideration paid : 172,563

Goodwili ) 18,111

Site licences valuation _ )
Management considered intangibles on acquisition. Licenses werc the sole intangible identified so a fair valuc

“calculation was done on 14 of the acquired sites we expect 10 use. [n doing so a multi-period excess earnings method

(MEEM) was used. This uses the principle that the value of an intangible asset is estimated from the residual earnings
after fair returns on all other assets employed have been deducted from the business' after-tax operating earnings.

These licences, on average, are rencwed after 25 years for little cost, and so are regarded as having an indefinite useful
life. The licenses are valued based on the expccled cashtlows generated from the sites, and as part of this valuation

management have made estimates over harvest volumes and future prices. Calculations were done based on the assets -

having an indefinite useful life. However, under FRS102 it will be amortised over the average remaining consent life of
an average of 15 years.

Fair value adjustments

Management considered other fair value adjustments that had to be made on acquisition. Useful lives of the fixed assets
acquired were aligned to the group policy. Stock valuation policies were also made consistent with the group.
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13. Acquisition (continued)

Yéar ended 2 January 2022

Duiring the year the Group acquired 100% of the issiied share capital of the foliowing company and its subsidiary
undertakings. These are listed below:

Name of company . Company Purchase ' Acquisition
number consideration date
Grieg Seafood Hjatland UK Limited = SCI159110 £172,563 15" December 2021

Subsidiaries

Grieg Seafood Shetland Limited SC093192
Isle of Skye Salmon Limited (dormant) SC647034

For the year-end 2 January 2022 the company had incurred £2.8m of legal, advisory and finance costs in relation to the
acquisition. These were charged to the operating result in the year. '

14. Stocks
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 . £000 £000
Materials and feed 4,942 3317 2,628 3,317
Fish 119,546 92,678 81,294 92,678

124,488 95,995 83922 95,995

The stocks recognised as an expense in the period were £146,2( 1,000 (2020 - £92,941,000).

15. Debtors

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 - £000 £000 £000

Trade debtors 17,200 9,449 8,186 9,449
Prepayments and accrued income 10,649 4,652 9,172 4,652
Amounts owed by ultimate parent undertakings 386 944 386 944
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 5,846 .
Corporation tax recoverable 3,073 - 1,483 -
Other debtors 5,344 120 2,670 120
36,652 15,165 27,743 15,165

PPN E i [ & SR —— p———— AL
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at.2 January_2022

16. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

- Group Company -

2021 T 2020 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000
Bank loans (note 18) 13,333 = 61,714 13,333 61,714
Non secured loan . 1,700 2,300 1,700 2,300
Bank overdraft 4,001 20,375 8,551 20,375
Trade creditors 26,862 15,308 18,498 15,308
Social security 1,042 876 854 - 876
Corporation tax payable - 108 - 108
Accruals and deferred income 15,573 16,347 15,401 T 16,347

Amounts owed to ultimate pareni undertakings

Obligations under finance feases and hire purchase
contracts (note 20) : 1,301 1,757 1,234 1,757
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 31,909 31,909

63812 118785 91,480 150,694

e e o tem oo = e ————
e R

The bank loans and overdraft are secured by a fixed and floating charge and standard security over all the assets of the
company and its subsidiaries. In addition, there is a first priority charge of the company’s shares in its subsidiary
underiakings.

17. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000

Bank loans (note 18) 145,417 Lo 145417 -

Non secured loan 20,400 3,529 20,400 3,529
Obligations under finance leases and hire

purchase contracts (note 20) . 2,378 2,758 1,811 2,758

168,195 6287 1671628 6287
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Notes to the financial statements

at 2 January 2022
18. Bank loans
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Wholly repayable within five years: , .
~ Bank loan . : 158,750 61,714 158,750 61,714
Less: included in creditors: amounts falling '
due within one year (notc 16) (13,333) (61,714) (13,333) 61,714)
Amounts falling due after one year (note 17) l45,4|7 . 145417 - .
Amounts repayable:
Within one year : ) 13,333 61,714 13,333 61,714
In two to five years 145,417 . - 145417 -
158750 61714 158750 61,714

The £21.75m loan facility that commenced in October 2016 and the £52m loan that commenced in November 2019 were
both fully repaid in July 2021. In the same month a £60m Joan commenced repayable in 20 equal instalments of £1,250,000
with a final repayment of £35m duc in 2026.

In 2 January 2022 a £100m foan commenced repayablc in 20 equal instalments of £2,083,333 with a final repayment of
£58.3m due in 2026.

19. Accruals and deferred income

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £000 £000 £000

Deferred government grants: -

At 3 January 2021 1,084 266 1,083 266
Received inperiod - : 73 998 74 " 998 -

" Received due to acquisition ' 927 : - - -
Released in period . (208) (180) (205) (181)

At 2 January 2022 ) 1,876 1,084 952 1,083
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Notes to the financial statements
at2.Jandaty.2022-

20. Cbligaticns under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

The maturity of these amouats is as follows:

Group Company
202/ 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Amounts payable: . '
Within one year " 1,441 1,921 1,356 1,921
In two 10 five years 2,337 3,042 1,995 3,042
Over 5 years 289 - . -
| 4067 4963 - 33st 4963
Léss: finance charges allocated 1o future periods (388) (447) (306) (448)
3679 4516 3045 4515
Finance leases and hire purchase contracts are analysed as follows:
Group Company.
202/ 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Current obligations (note 16) 1,301 1,757 1,234 1,757
Non-current obligations (note 17) 2378 2,759 1,811 2,159
3679 4516 3.045 4515

21. Called up share capital

Allalled. called up

Authorised and fully paid

20271 2020 202/ 2020

No No. £000 £000-

Ordinary shares of £1 each 71,400,000 21,400,000 71,400 21,400

During the year the authorised share capital was increased by the creation of 50,00,000 ordinary shares of £1 each.
These shares were allotted by the directors at £1 each to help fund the ongoing operations of the business.
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Notes to the financial statements
-at 2 January.2022

22. Reserves

Share premium account
This reserve records the amount above the nominal value received for shares sold, less transaction costs.

23. Financial instruménts

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £000 £000
Financial assets that are equity ’ :
instruments measured aft cost less impairment -
Financial assets that are debt
instruments measured at cost
- Other debtors 5,344 120 . 2,670 120
- Amounts owed by ultimate parent undertakings 386 944 386 944
Finaricial liabilities measured
at amortised cost
Finance leases and hire purchase contracts 3,679 4,515 3,679 4,515
Trade creditors 26,861 15,308 18,498 15,308
- Bank loans 158,750 61,714 158,750 61,714
- Non secured loans 1,700 5,829 1,700 5,829
- Amounts owed lo subsidiary undertakings ) - - 31,909 31,909

24. Capital commitments

Amounts contracted for but not brovided in the financial statements amounted to £2,466,000 (2020 - £1,317,000) for the
group, company was £2,058,000 (2020 - £1,317,000)

25. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits

The Company operates a defined benefit scheme in the UK. The combany took the decision to close the scheme to
future accrual with effect from midnight on 31 December 2009. From | January 2010 members have been offered
membership of the Company's Group Personal Pension Plan and no further defined benefits have accrued.

" A valuation has been carried out by a qualified independent actuary based on the FRS [02 assumptions at 31 December
202 1. The FRS102 valuation is based on projecting forward the results of the 31 December 2019 funding valuation,
allowing for interest on the liabilities, the actual benefits paid out, an estimate of the effect of any changes in the
actuarial assumptions and GMP equalisation. Scheme asscts are stated at their unaudited bid-market value at 31
December.
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25. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
The assets and liabilities of the scheme at 31 December 2021 are:
~ Scheme assets at fair value:
' 2021 2020
£000 £000
Corporate Bonds 7,923 8,397
Government Bonds » 10,461 10,554
Liquidity funds 1,162 i,340
Cash ‘ 38 33
Fair value of scheme assets ; -Té;;84 .;0,324
Present value of scheme liabilities (17,741) (16,954)
Dcfined benefit pension scheme surplus ‘ l84"5 -S.;’;O
Effect of asset limitation ] (1,843) (3,370)

Net pension surplus on the balance sheet - -

The net surplus of £1,843,000 at 31 December 2021 (2020 - £3,370,000) has not been incorporated into the financial
statements as Scottish Sea Farms Limited, as an employer, is not decmied o coniroi or be able (¢ benefit from the
surplus, in accordance with FRS102,

The company made no deficit reduction contributions in 202F. All costs of administration are paid in addition by the
company and are charged directly to the profit or loss as a business expense outside FRS102, so they are excluded from
this report.

The movements in assets and liabilities in the period are as follows:

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are analysed as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000
Benefit obligation at beginning of the year _ 16,954 13,120
Interest cost e ’ 242 270
Experience losses : - 1,085
Benefits paid (270) 377)
Changes in assumptions : 815 2,856
Benefit obligation at 31 December 2021 17;741 16,954
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25. Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)

_ Changes in the fair value of plan assets are analysed as follows:

£000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets at beginning of the year ' 20,324 17,714
Expected return on scheme assels 291 370
Contributions by employer ) - 188
Benefits paid ' (270) @377)
Actuarial gains . (761) 2,429
Fair value of scheme assets at 2 January 2022 . 19,584 é0,324
Net amount recognised : . nil nil

The contributions made by the employer over the financial period have been nil (2020 - £118,000). All costs of
administering the scheme are paid by the company and are charged directly to the profit and loss as a business expense..

2027 2020
£000 £000
Currént service cost - -
Interest income pension scheme assets (before asset limitation effect) (291) (370)
Interest income pension scheme assets (after asset limitation effect) (242) ' (270)
Interést on pension scheme liabilities ' 242 270

Net-return (before asset limitation etfect) .

Net return (after asset limitation effect) . .
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25,

at2-January-2022

Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (continued)
Taken to the statement of comprehensive income:
202i 2020
£000 £000
Re-measurements (recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI))
Actual return less interest income on pension scheme assets 761 (2,429)
Experience gains and losses arising on the scheme liabilities , - 1,085
Changes in assumptions underlying the present value of the scheme liabilities : 815 2,856
Actuarial gain.recognised in OCI : .( 1,576) (l 512)
Effect of asset limitation 1,576 1,512
Total amount recognised in OCI o -
Recognised in the group income statement
‘ ' ' 2021 2020
£000 £000
Expecied return on pension scheme assels (291) (370)
Interest on pension obligation : 291 370
Net income ' .- o
Main assumptions: L 2021 2020
Rate of increase in deferred pensions accrued pre 1 March 2002 A 3.72% 3.50%
Rate of increase in deferred pensions accrued post | March 2002 . 3.11% 2.69%
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment 2.95% 2.16%
Discount rate 1.78% 1.44%
Inflation assumption ~ RPI 3.25% 2.86% -
Inflation assumption - CPI (pre 2030/post 203C) 2.25%/ 3.25% 1.86%/ 2.86%

An expected rate of return on asset assumption is not required under FRS102, where the interest income on assets will be
calculated using the discount rate assumption.

The actual return on scheme assets during 2021 was a loss of £470,000, 2020 was £2,779.000.

Statutory pension increases or revaluations based on price inflation

The same post retirement mortality base table assumption has been adopted as was used for the results of the funding
valuation at 31 December 2020 i.e. the S3PA tables but with a 34% uplift 1o the base gx rates on the expensing basis.
The future improvements assumption has been updated to be in line with the CMI_2020 projection model with 1.5% p.a.
long-term rate of improvement, a smoothing parameter (s-kappa) of 7.5, default core initial improvements parameter of
zero and no weight 1o 2020 data. These tables correspond to life expectancies from age 65 as follows:
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25.

26.

27.

Pensions aﬁd other post-reﬁiement benefits (continued)

Male Female
Member currently 20.1 219
aged 65
Member currently 21.7 23.7
aged 45 :

The pre retirement mortality assumption is the same as that which was adopted for the most recent actuarial valuation,
i.e. the A92 ables with a -2 year age rating.

In addition, an allowancc has becn made for members to choose 1o commute 25% of their pension cntitlement for a tax-
free cash lump sum at retirement using factors currently in force. A sample factor used is £17.5 at age 65 (2020: 25%
with sample factor of £15.255 at age 65).

The company.also operates a defined contribution scheme for its employees. Contributions accrued and due to be paid
at 31 Deccmber 2021 amounted to £43,000 (2020 - £44,000). The contributions paid into this scheme in the period
were £511,000 (2020 - £469,000).

Other financial commitments

As at 2 January 2022 the group had futurc minimum rentals payable under non-canccllable operating lcascs as set out
below:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Within one year 12,488 3,789
Two to five years : 9,037 3,340
Over 5 years 3,201 -
24,726 7,129
Related parties
i) During the period, the group bought and sold fish in the normal course of businessA from/to Hallvard Leroy ASA

and Salmar Sales ASA, both subsidiaries of its ultimate parent undertakings. The price charged was the normal
market price in the case of each individual purchasc/sale. Included in the profit and loss account are the following
amounlts relating to transactions with Hallvard Leroy ASA and Salmar Sales ASA:

2021 2020
£000 £000
Sales to associated company 16,188 © 9,694
Purchases from associaled companics 47s 177
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27. Related parties {continued)

28.

29,

At the balance sheet date the amount due from Hallvard Leroy ASA was £386,000 (2020 £944 ,000). The amount
due from SSF Shetland was £200,000 (2020 - £221,000).

it) There have been other intra group transactions but these have not been disclosed due to the exemption contained in
Financial Reporting Standard !02.

Parent undertakings and controlling parties

In the opinion of the directors, the company’s immediate parent undertaking is Norskott Havbruk AS, incorporated in
Norway. It will include the company in its group financial statements, copies of which will be available from its registered
office: Bontelabo 2, 5020 Bergen, Norway. :

In the opinion of the direciors, the company’s ultimate parent undertakings and controlling pariies are Leroy Scalvod
Group ASA and Salmar ASA, both companies incorporated in Norway. Copies of their group financial statements, which
include the company, are available from PO Box 7600, N-5020 Bergen, Norway, and N-216 Kverva, Norway, respectively.

Post balance sheet events

In relation to the conflict in Ukraine, Scottish Sea Farms does not sell to the territories involved, namely Russia, Ukraine
or Belarus. Like most-companies, however, there has been some cost inflation on consumables and energy. This is not
however expected to have a material impact on the group.
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